

# Cherwell District Council Pay Policy Statement

This policy statement will be subject to review annually and in accordance with new or proposed legislation to ensure that it remains relevant and effective. It is effective from 1st April 2025

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Content	Page
Introduction and Purpose	3
2. Definitions	3-5
3. Pay Strategy	5
4. Pay Design	5-6
5. Appointments	7
6. Pay Structures	8
<ul> <li>Pay grades and progression</li> </ul>	
- Pay supplements and allowances	
7. Other employment related arrangements	9
<ul> <li>Local Government Pension Scheme</li> </ul>	
- Benefit schemes	
- Expenses	
8. Pay arrangements for Senior Management	10
9. Pay Multiples and Medians as of 1 April 2025	10-11
10. Payments on termination of employment	12
11. Publication of Senior Salaries	12
Appendix 1 – Cherwell District Council Pay Scales – 2024/25	13
Appendix 2 – Cherwell District Council Pay Scales – 2025/26	14
Appendix 3 – Chief Officers and Direct Reports	15

## 1. Introduction, Overview and Purpose

Under Section 112 of the Local Government Act 1992, the Council has the "power to appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the authority thinks fit". This Pay Policy Statement (the 'statement') sets out the Council's approach to pay policy in accordance with the requirements of Section 38-43 of the Localism Act 2011 and due regard to the associated Statutory Guidance including the Supplementary Statutory Guidance issued in February 2013 and guidance issued under the Local Government Transparency Code 2015.

The purpose of this statement is to provide transparency with regard to the Council's approach to setting the pay of its employees, excluding employees working in alternative service delivery models.

Thus, this statement details the methods by which salaries for all roles are determined, and the detail and the level of remuneration of its most senior employees. This statement will be published on the Council's public website and will be available in other formats upon request.

Procedural and approval requirements set down in the Council's Constitution will be applied as required.

In determining the pay and remuneration of all its employees, the Council takes account of the need to ensure value for money in respect of the use of public expenditure.

The Council develops and implements reward systems and structures which meet the following requirements:

- Allow the Council to recruit and retain high calibre employees to provide high quality services
- Maintain levels of pay which are in line with the Council's financial policies and provide value for money
- Are open, transparent and accountable
- Are fair and consistent

Once approved, this policy statement will come into effect on 1 April 2025 superseding the 2024/25 statement and will continue to be reviewed on an annual basis.

#### 2. Definitions

To support the transparency of the Pay Policy Statement, below are definitions for common words/phrases that are used throughout.

#### 2.1. Remuneration

For the purposes of this statement remuneration includes three elements – basic salary, pension and all other allowances arising from employment.

#### 2.2. Chief Officers

The definition of Chief Officers is defined as the officer designated as the Head of the Authority's Paid Service; a statutory chief officer – which under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 means the Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer.

The definition of a non-statutory Chief Officer which under section 2 (7) of the 1989 Act means direct reports of the Head of Paid Service (HOPS), a person in a senior level position, for whom the HOPS is directly responsible; a person who, as respects all or most of the duties of his/her post, is required to report directly or is directly accountable to the HOPS; and any person who, as respects all or most of the duties of his/her post, is required to report directly or is directly accountable to the local authority themselves or any committee or sub-committee of the authority.

In the case of the Council these posts are:

• Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service)

#### **Statutory Chief Officers**

- Assistant Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer
- Assistant Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring Officer

#### Non-Statutory Chief Officers

- Corporate Director of Communities
- Corporate Director of Resources and Transformation

#### 2.3. Lowest Paid Employees

According to the pay scales, the lowest pay employees receive is on Grade A, Scale Point 3 which is the lowest standard pay point. The salary on this grade is currently payable to staff carrying out cleaning roles. Lowest paid employees exclude apprentices due to their trainee status and exclude staff who may have transferred into the Council under TUPE protected rates.

#### 2.4. Pay Multiples

The pay multiples detail the relationship between two different pay amounts, showing the number of times one value is contained within another value. The relationships will be shown between:

- the highest paid taxable earnings (including base salary, variable pay, bonuses, allowances and cash value of any benefits in kind) and the lowest paid taxable earnings.
- the highest paid taxable earnings (including base salary, variable pay, bonuses, allowances and the cash value of any benefits in kind) and the median earnings figure of the whole workforce.
- the average median salary of Chief Officers and the median earnings figure of the whole workforce.

## 3. Pay Strategy

We undertake a review of the remuneration of all staff each year, taking into consideration hourly pay rates and other significant benefits such as annual leave entitlement (benchmarked), employer pension contributions, and training and development opportunities and a flexible approach to agile working. We believe that taking a holistic view to remuneration ensures that our staff are rewarded fairly and encourages us all to think of total reward packages rather than a single component such as base pay. At the point the Pay Policy Statement was published in 2024, the annual cost of living award had not been agreed. A local 2-year pay deal was negotiated with UNISON. For 2024-25, the cost-of-living award was agreed at 4% and implemented in December 2024 salary payments, backdated to 1 April 2024. In addition to a 4% increase, where this percentage increase did not equate to the national agreement for the sector of £1,290, non-consolidated payments of the difference between 4% and the national agreement of £1,290 for the national pay scales were provided to CDC employees. A copy of the 2024/25 pay scales are at appendix 1.

For 2025-26, the second year of the 2-year pay deal, an increase of 3.5% was agreed, effective from 1 April 2025. Based on 2025-26 pay scales, our lowest hourly rate is currently £12.02 which is 1.5% below the April 2025 rates for UK Living Wage of £12.21. Hourly rates for grade A and the first spine point of grade B will be uplifted to £12.21 to reflect the national living wage. Future cost-of-living awards will be applied to the original pay rates, not the national living wage rate but where hourly rates do not exceed the national living wage rate, then this rate would still apply. A copy of the pay rates is at appendix 2.

## 4. Pay Design

There is a single pay scale in operation at the Council. This was developed in 2018

by external reward specialists as part of a harmonisation process and in conjunction with a review of the job evaluation schemes in use. The harmonisation process was subject to a full consultation process with the trade unions.

The Council ensures that all pay arrangements can be objectively justified through the use of Job Evaluation methods. These are:

- Greater London Provincial Council (GLPC) scheme for roles that score under 560 points when evaluated.
- Roles that score 560 points and above are subject to HAY evaluation.

Grading structures for all groups of employees are implemented in line with agreed published pay scales and agreed relevant local terms and conditions of employment where applicable.

## 5. Appointments

The Personnel Committee is the appointing body for appointments to the role of Head of Paid Service.

The statutory role of s151 officer is held by the Assistant Director of Finance and the Monitoring Officer held by the Assistant Director of Law and Governance. The Head of Paid Service can appoint to Assistant Director level roles, subject to ratification of Executive members but Full Council ratify appointments of statutory officers.

The Personnel Committee is the appointing body for non-statutory Chief Officers.

The Executive consultation procedure is utilised as required by regulations for Chief Officer posts and Assistant Director roles. Information relating to Chief Officer roles and direct reports can be found at appendix 3.

Post	Regulatory Description	Appointment under Constitution
Head of Paid Service	Head of Paid Service	Personnel Committee with recommendation to Full Council
(s151 Officer) Assistant Director of Finance	Statutory Chief Officer	Head of Paid Service for the appointment of Assistant Director role, ratified by Executive members, with Full Council appointing to s151 Officer
(Monitoring Officer) Assistant Director of Law and Governance	Statutory Chief Officer	Head of Paid Service for the appointment of Assistant Director role, ratified by Executive members, with Full Council appointing to Monitoring Officer
Corporate Director of Communities	Non-statutory Chief Officer	Personnel Committee, ratified by Executive members
Corporate Director of Resources	Non-statutory Chief Officer	Personnel Committee, ratified by Executive members

Any pay or grading changes for Chief Officers are considered and, if agreed, approved by the Personnel Committee.

## 6. Pay Structures

#### 6.1. Pay Grades and Progression

Most jobs have a grade with at least four and a maximum of five incremental points. When an employee is appointed to a new role it is typically at the bottom of the grade, unless they have significant experience in a similar role.

Annually and usually with effect from 1<sup>st</sup> April, pay awards are implemented following local negotiation with the trade unions and are broadly in line with national recommendations.

Employees also progress to the next incremental point within their pay scale on the 1 April following their completion of a full years' service. This system recognises their increasing experience and performance, and progression continues until they reach the top of the grade.

6.2. High levels of performance are expected from all employees and where standards are not satisfactory, prompt managerial action will be taken to improve performance. Increments may be withheld as a result of these actions arising from disciplinary or capability situations.

From time to time it may be necessary to pay special allowances or supplements to individual employees as part of their employment contract where specific circumstances require this and where it can be justified in accordance with Council policies. The Council uses the following:

- Honoraria are paid where an employee has taken on additional duties and responsibilities for a defined period, for example covering a vacancy due to maternity leave or other staff absence.
- Market supplements are paid where there are exceptional circumstances or sudden changes in market forces deeming it necessary in order to recruit and retain staff.

The Council will ensure that the requirement for additional allowances or supplements is objectively justified by reference to clear and transparent evidence.

Pay Supplements are subject to reviews as appropriate in accordance with agreed procedures.

## 7. Other Employment Related Arrangements

#### 7.1. Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

Subject to qualifying conditions, employees have a right to belong to the LGPS.

The Employee contribution rates which are defined by statute, currently range between 5.5% and 12.5% of pensionable pay depending on actual salary levels.

The Employer contribution rates are set by actuaries and reviewed on a triennial basis in order to ensure the scheme is appropriately funded. The current average rate is 15.9% based on making an upfront payment of £5.7m to cover a 3-year period until 2025/26.

#### 7.2. Benefits Schemes

As part of the Reward Strategy to recruit and retain high calibre employees, the Council provides a wide range of benefits including the Cycle Scheme and Childcare Voucher salary sacrifice schemes and has now introduced an Electric Vehicle salary sacrifice scheme.

A full review of the benefits offered by the council is continuing in 2025.

#### 7.3. Expenses

Subsistence and out of pocket expenses are based on national joint council rates. Car mileage is based on the HM Revenue & Customs approved rate, currently 45 pence per mile falling to 25 pence, for miles travelled in excess of 10,000 per annum.

## 8. Pay Arrangements for Senior Management

The Council does not apply any bonuses or performance related pay to its Chief Officers.

The Assistant Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer and the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic and Monitoring Officer each receive an allowance for statutory duties of £13,417.97 per annum.

Where Officers receive fees for undertaking elections duties, these will be shown separately to salary. Election fees are reviewed by the Returning Officer.

## 9. Pay Multiples and Medians as at 1st April 2025

Cherwell District Council is required to report on the pay multiples between its lowest and highest paid members of staff.

10

<u>Table 1</u> shows the ratio between the lowest paid and the highest paid and the ratio between the median salary of the workforce and the highest paid.

Pay Multiples	2025/26
Highest Paid - Chief Executive	£161,460
Lowest Paid	£23,557
Pay Multiple between the lowest paid and the highest paid	6.9:1
Median Salary	£56,382
Pay Multiple between median and highest paid	2.9:1

 $\begin{tabular}{ll} \hline \textbf{Table 2} & shows the ratio between the median salary of the workforce and the average salary of its Chief Officers. \end{tabular}$ 

Pay Multiples using the average salary of Chief Officers	2025/26
Average Salary of Chief Officers	£116,512
Lowest Paid	£23,557
Pay Multiple between the lowest paid and the Average Salary of Chief Officers	4.9:1
Median Salary	£56,382
Pay Multiple between Median salary and Average salary of Chief Officers	2.1:1

## 10. Payments on Termination of Employment

The Cherwell District Council Redundancy Scheme applies to all employees and is one week's statutory entitlement based on actual pay per year of service for employees under the age of 41 years and one and half week's statutory entitlement based on actual pay for those aged 41 years and above where redundancy payments are due. A maximum of 20 years' service can be taken into account for redundancy payments.

All employees who have received a redundancy payment in relation to the termination of their contracts of employment will be subject to the provisions of the Redundancy Modification Order and will be subject to Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations.

Where severance payments are appropriate such payments will be approved by the Monitoring Officer, Assistant Director of Finance (s151) and Head of Paid Service and will be the subject of a Settlement Agreement for the purpose of compromising any compensation for which the Council may otherwise be legally liable. Severance payments will be discussed with legal advisors and a 'Best Value' note obtained based on the merits of the individual case. Severance payments over £100,000 require Full Council approval.

#### 11. Publication of Senior Salaries Statement

In accordance with publication requirements, a table showing information on the pay of all officers earning over £50,000 per annum will be published on the Council's website. All allowances and other payments will also be shown, as well as services and functions each role is responsible for, inclusive of budget held and number of staff managed.

Claire Cox Assistant Director of Human Resources December 2024

## Appendix 1 - Cherwell District Council Pay Scales for 2024/25

Pay structure is effective as at 1 April 2024.

CHERWELL DISTRICT COUNCIL PAY SCALES - 2024/25								
Grade	Levels	Annual	Hourly		Grade	Levels	Annual	Hourly
Grade A	1	£21,414.50	£11.10	*with effect from	-	1	£54,476.00	£28.24
	2	£22,190.50	£11.50	01/04/2024,		2	£55,353.50	£28.69
, ,	3	£22,411.00	£11.62	salaries on Grade	Grade J	3	£56,231.00	£29.15
	1	£22,411.00	£11.62	Aspine point 1 will		4	£57,108.50	£29.60
Grade	2	£23,035.00	£11.94	be uplifted to		5	£57,986.50	£30.06
B	3	£23,659.00		£11.44 per hour		1	£57,986.50	£28.90
	4	£24,282.50		(£22,071 full-time		2	£59,079.00	£29.44
	5	£24,907.00	£12.91	annual salary) to	Grade K	3	£60,171.50	£29.99
	1	£24,907.00	£12.91	reflect the national		4	£61,265.00	£30.53
Grade	2	£25,530.50	£13.23	living wage.		5	£62,358.00	£31.08
C	3	£26,154.50	£13.56			1	£62,358.00	£32.32
	4	£26,778.00	£13.88			2	£63,417.50	£32.87
	5	£27,402.00	£14.20		Grade L	3	£64,478.50	£33.42
	1	£27,402.00	£14.20			4	£65,538.50	£33.97
Grade	2	£28,026.50	£14.53			5	£66,599.00	£34.52
D	3	£28,650.50	£14.85			1	£66,599.00	£33.19
	4	£29,274.00	£15.17			2	£67,660.00	£33.72
	5	£29,898.00	£15.50		Grade M	3	£68,719.50	£34.25
	1	£29,898.00	£15.50			4	£69,780.00	£34.78
Grade	2	£30,522.50	£15.82			5	£70,840.50	£35.31
E	3	£31,146.00	£16.14			1	£77,449.50	£40.14
_	4	£31,769.50	£16.47		Assistant	2	£78,685.50	£40.78
	5	£32,393.50	£16.79		Director	3	£79,921.00	£41.43
	1	£32,393.50	£16.79		Level 1	4	£81,155.50	£42.06
Grade	2	£33,642.00	£17.44			5	£82,391.50	£42.71
F	3	£34,889.50	£18.08			6	£87,333.50	£43.53
•	4	£35,825.00	£18.57		Assistant	7	£88,569.00	£44.14
	5	£37,073.00	£19.22		Director	8	£89,805.00	£44.76
	1	£37,073.00	£19.22		Level 2	9	£91,040.50	£45.37
Grade	2	£38,321.00	£19.86			10	£92,276.50	£45.99
Grade	3	£39,569.00	£20.51			1	£96,628.00	£50.08
	4	£40,817.50	£21.16		Executive	2	£97,892.00	£50.74
	5	£42,064.50	£21.80		Director -	3	£99,155.00	£51.39
	1	£42,064.50	£21.80		Level 1	4	£100,419.50	£52.05
Grade	2	£43,312.50	£22.45			5	£101,684.00	£52.71
Grade H	3	£44,560.50				6	£109,599.00	£54.62
	4	£45,808.50	£23.74		Executive Director -	7	£112,034.00	£55.84
	5	£47,055.50	£24.39		Level 2	8	£115,688.00	£57.66
	1	£47,055.50	£24.39			9	£121,138.50	£60.37
	2	£48,304.00	£25.04			1	£145,600.00	£75.47
Grade	3	£49,551.50	£25.68		Chief	2	£149,066.50	£77.26
•	4	£50,800.00	£26.33		Executive	3	£152,533.00	£79.06
	5	£52,048.00	£26.98			4	£156,000.00	£80.86

Apprenticeship pay rates:

Levels	Annual Pay	Hourly rate
. 1		
(under 18 or in first year)	£14,195.00	£7.36
2		
(18-20)	£17,746.50	£9.20
3		
(21 & over)	£22,190.50	£11.50
4		
(23 & over)	£22,411.00	£11.62

## **Appendix 2 - Cherwell District Council Pay Scales for 2025/26**

Pay structure is effective as at 1 April 2025.

CHERWELL DISTRICT COUNCIL PAY SCALES - 2025/26								
Grade	Levels	Annual	Hourly		Grade	Levels	Annual	Hourly
0	1	£22,164.50	£11.49	*with effect from		1	£56,383.00	£29.22
Grade A	2	£22,967.50	£11.90	01/04/2025,	Grade J	2	£57,291.00	£29.70
^	3	£23,195.50	£12.02	salaries on Grade A		3	£58,199.50	£30.17
	1	£23,195.50	£12.02	spine point 1 to		4	£59,107.50	£30.64
	2	£23,841.50	£12.36	Grade Bspine point		5	£60,016.50	£31.11
Grade B	3	£24,487.50	£12.69	1 will be uplifted to		1	£60,016.50	£30.06
	4	£25,132.50	£13.03	£12.21 per hour		2	£61,147.00	£30.62
	5	£25,779.00	£13.36	(£23,556 full-time	Grade K	3	£62,277.50	£31.19
	1	£25,779.00	£13.36	annual salary) to		4	£63,409.50	£31.76
0	2	£26,424.50	£13.70	reflect the national		5	£64,541.00	£32.32
Grade C	3	£27,070.00	£14.03	living wage.		1	£64,541.00	£33.45
	4	£27,715.50	£14.37			2	£65,637.50	£34.02
	5	£28,361.50	£14.70		Grade L	3	£66,735.50	£34.59
	1	£28,361.50	£14.70			4	£67,832.50	£35.16
0	2	£29,007.50	£15.04			5	£68,930.00	£35.73
Grade D	3	£29,653.50	£15.37			1	£68,930.00	£34.52
	4	£30,299.00	£15.70			2	£70,028.50	£35.07
	5	£30,944.50	£16.04		Grade M	3	£711,255.00	£35.62
	1	£30,944.50	£16.04			4	£72,222.50	£36.17
	2	£31,591.00	£16.37			5	£73,320.00	£36.72
Grade E	3	£32,236.50	£16.71			1	£80,160.50	£41.55
_ [	4	£32,881.50	£17.04		Assistant	2	£81,439.50	£42.21
	5	£33,527.50	£17.38		Director	3	£82,718.50	£42.88
	1	£33,527.50	£17.38		Level 1	4	£83,996.00	£43.54
C = 4 = [	2	£34,819.50	£18.05			5	£85,275.50	£44.20
Grade F	3	£361,115.00	£187.17			6	£90,390.50	£45.27
•	4	£37,079.00	£19.22		Assistant	7	£91,669.00	£45.91
	5	£38,371.00	£19.89		Director	8	£92,948.50	£46.55
	1	£38,371.00	£19.89		Level 2	9	£94,227.00	£47.19
0	2	£39,662.50	£20.56			10	£95,506.50	£47.83
Grade G	3	£40,954.00	£21.23			1	£100,010.00	£51.84
	4	£42,246.50	£21.90		Executive	2	£101,318.50	£52.52
	5	£43,537.00	£22.57		Director -	3	£102,625.50	£53.19
	1	£43,537.00	£22.57		Level 1	4	£103,934.50	£53.87
0	2	£44,828.50	£23.24			5	£105,243.00	£54.55
Grade H	3	£46,120.50	£23.91		_	6	£113,435.00	£56.81
	4	£47,412.00	£24.57		Executive	7	£115,955.50	£58.07
	5	£48,702.50	£25.24		Director - Level 2	8	£119,737.50	£59.96
	1	£48,702.50	£25.24			9	£125,378.50	£62.79
Grade	2	£49,995.00	£25.91			1	£150,696.00	£78.11
	3	£51,286.00	£26.58		Chief	2	£154,284.00	£79.97
•	4	£52,578.00	£27.25		Executive	3	£157,872.00	£81.83
	5	£53,870.00	£27.92			4	£161,460.00	£83.69

Apprenticeship pay rates:

Levels	Annual Pay	Hourly rate
1 (under 18 or in first year)	£14,692.00	£7.62
2 (18-20)	£18,368.00	£9.52
3 (21 & over)	£22,967.50	£11.90
4 (23 & over)	£23,195.50	£12.02

## **Appendix 3 – Chief Officers and Direct Reports**

The positions listed below are core establishment and are Chief Officers outlined in the Pay Policy Statement and posts that report directly to Chief Officers.

Position Name	Department	Directorate	Grade Name	Salary Range
	Corporate Leadership			
Chief Executive	Team	Chief Executive	CHIEF EXEC	£150,696 – 161,460
Corporate Director of	Corporate Leadership		EXEC DIR	
Communities	Team	Communities	GRD	£113,435 – 125,378.50
Corporate Director of				
Resources and	Corporate Leadership	Resources and	EXEC DIR	
Transformation	Team	Transformation	GRD	£113,435 – 125,378.50
Assistant Director of	Corporate Leadership	D		
Finance and Section 151 Officer	Team Finance	Resources and Transformation	AD 2	£90,390.50 – 95,506.50
Assistant Director of Law	Corporate Leadership	Transformation	AD Z	190,590.50 - 95,506.50
and Governance and	Team &			
Democratic Services and	Law and Governance,	Resources and		
Monitoring Officer	and Procurement	Transformation	AD 2	£90,390.50 – 95,506.50
Assistant Director of				
Wellbeing and Housing	Wellbeing and			
Services	Housing Services	Communities	AD 2	£90,390.50 – 95,506.50
Assistant Director of	Environmental			
Environmental Services	Services	Communities	AD 2	£90,390.50 – 95,506.50
Assistant Director of				
Growth and Economy	Growth and Economy	Communities	AD 2	£90,390.50 – 95,506.50
Assistant Director of	Planning and			
Planning and Development	Development	Communities	AD 2	£90,390.50 – 95,506.50
Head of Regulatory Services				
and Community Safety	Regulatory Services	Communities	C Grade M	£68,930 - £73,320
Assistant Director of		Resources and		
Customer Focus	Customer Focus	Transformation	AD 2	£90,390.50 – 95,506.50
		Resources and		
Assistant Director of HR	HR OD and Payroll	Transformation	AD 1	£80,160.50 - £85,275.50
Assistant Director of		Resources and		
Property	Property	Transformation	AD 2	£90,390.50 – 95,506.50
Head of Legal and	Law and Governance,	Resources and		
Democratic Services	and Procurement	Transformation	C Grade M	£68,930 - £73,320
Head of Digital and		Resources and		
Innovation	ICT and Digital	Transformation	C Grade M	£68,930 - £73,320
		Resources and		
Head of Finance	Finance	Transformation	C Grade M	£68,930 - £73,320
Head of Revenues and	5	Resources and	66	000 000 070 000
Benefits Services	Finance	Transformation	C Grade M	£68,930 - £73,320

<sup>\*</sup> Statutory Officer Allowance of £13,417.97 per annum paid in addition to salary